
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA

88 S. PARK AVENUE, LE CENTER, MN
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

February 16, 2016

1. 9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: February 2, 2016 Minutes and Summary Minutes
b. RE: Caribou Gun Club Renewal of Consumption and Display Permit
c. RE: Le Sueur Valley Ducks Unlimited Gambling Permit

2. 9:05 a.m. Claims (10 min)

3. 9:15 a.m. Human Services (45 min)

4. 10:00 a.m. Seasonal Bids (5 min)

5. 10:05 a.m.  Kathy Brockway, P&Z Administrator (10 minutes)
a. 3 RFA Items,  Traxlers Construction, Hanlon and Kamp Dels

6. 10:15 a.m. Le Sueur County Historical Society (5 min)
a. RE: Ottawa Church Restoration Project Update

7. 10:20 a.m. Scott Gerr, MIS (5 min)
a. RE: AirWatch Support Renewal Quote

8. 10:25 a.m. Mike Schultz, Soil & Water (10 min)
a. RE: Charles Puffer Stabilization Project

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 1 / 70



9. 10:35 a.m. Human Resources (5 min)

10. 10:40 a.m. Dave Tietz, Sheriff (5 min)
a. RE: Patrol Vehicle Quotes
b. RE: AIS Trailer Purchase

11. 10:45 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator/Engineer
a. RE: Drug Court Contract
b. RE: Ney Nature Center Sign
c. RE: Western County Boundary/Meandering River
d. RE: County Ditch Fund Balances
e. RE: March Ditch Workshop
f. RE: February 23 Space Study and CIP Workshop Reminder
g. RE: February 29 Transit Meeting Reminder
h. RE: MIsc.

12. Future Meetings

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 2 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 1

9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: February 2, 2016 Minutes and Summary Minutes

RE: Caribou Gun Club Renewal of Consumption and Display Permit

RE: Le Sueur Valley Ducks Unlimited Gambling Permit

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 3 / 70



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
February 2, 2016

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, February 2, 
2016 at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: 
Steve Rohlfing, John King, Joe Connolly, Lance Wetzel and Dave Gliszinski. Also present were 
Darrell Pettis and Brent Christian. 

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the amended agenda for the business of the day.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the consent agenda:

● Approved the January 26, 2016 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes
● Approved the NWTF Valley Yelpers Gambling Application

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the claims for Human Services:

Financial:             $ 34,049.71
Soc Serv:              $ 49,164.57

Cindy Westerhouse, Human Resources Director came before the Board with several items for 
discussion and approval.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to promote Kelly Wroe to a full time Accounting/Licensing Clerk in the 
Auditor-Treasurer’s Office as a Grade 7, Step 1 at $18.54 per hour, effective February 8, 2016.  

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to promote Heather Gilhousen to a full time Accounting/Licensing Clerk in 
the Auditor-Treasurer’s Office as a Grade 7, Step 1 at $18.54 per hour, effective February 8, 
2016.  

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
recommendation to hire Kathleen Hagen as a part time Homemaker in Public Health as a Grade 
1, Step 1 at $13.08 per hour, effective February 22, 2016.  

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to approve and sign to renew the Le Sueur County Telecommute 
Agreement with Roxanne Braun-Billings, full time Agency Social Worker, in Human Services, 
effective March 1, 2016 to March 1, 2017.  

Administrator Pettis appeared before the Board with a number of items for consideration and 
approval.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 4 / 70



On motion by Connolly, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the purchase of a John Deere Tractor 6130M with a trade-in of a 2009 John Deere 6430 from Ag 
Power Enterprises for $46,000 and a Mower from Diamond Mowers for $36,487 for a total of 
$82,487.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the purchase of a 2016 Chevrolet Equinox, State Contract 72060, from Ranger Chevrolet Buick 
GMC in the amount of $22,109.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Chair to sign the Agreement to Provide Professional Services between 
Minnesota Counties Computer Cooperative and Trimin Systems, Inc.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved a 
resolution to open Seasonal Bids for the Highway Department on Tuesday, February 16th at 
10:00 a.m.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Sheriff to sign the annual agreement between the Le Sueur County Jail and 
A’Viands, LLC.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the following claims 
were approved for payment:

Warrant # Vendor Name Amount

39357 A;Viands $    6,480.20
39370 Bolton & Menk Inc. $  11,220.00
39374 Cargill Inc. $    6,613.50
39384 Dirt Merchant Inc. $111,072.58
39386 Ehlers & Assoc. Inc. $    3,300.00
39404 Le Sueur County Soil/Water Conservation Dist. $    2,395.81
39405 M-R Sign Co. Inc. $    2,442.75
39411 Nicollet County Sheriff $    2,280.00
39417 Rinke-Noonan Law Firm $    3,589.75
39422 S.E.H. Inc. $  45,482.24
39423 Selly Excavating Inc. $  83,717.50
39424 SHI International Corp. $    6,362.00
39431 Technical Solutions of Madison Lake Inc. $    2,086.01
39437 Tri-County Solid Waste $  18,423.85

76 Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  31,506.10  
14 Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $305,466.19
90 Total all claims paid: $336,972.29

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 5 / 70



 
On motion by Connolly, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned 
until Tuesday February 16, 2016 at 9:00 a.m.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 6 / 70



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, February 2, 2016
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us. 
●The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 
9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: Steve Rohlfing, John 
King, Joe Connolly, Lance Wetzel and Dave Gliszinski. Also present were Darrell Pettis and Brent 
Christian. 
●The Board approved the amended agenda for the business of the day. (Connolly-Rohlfing)
●The Board approved the consent agenda: January 26, 2016 County Board Minutes and Summary 
Minutes and NWTF Valley Yelpers Gambling Application. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)
●The Board approved the claims for Human Services: Financial: $ 34,049.71 and Soc Serv: $ 49,164.57 
(Gliszinski-Rohlfing)
●The Board approved to promote Kelly Wroe to a full time Accounting/Licensing Clerk in the Auditor-
Treasurer’s Office as a Grade 7, Step 1 at $18.54 per hour, effective February 8, 2016. (Rohlfing-
Gliszinski) 
●The Board approved to promote Heather Gilhousen to a full time Accounting/Licensing Clerk in the 
Auditor-Treasurer’s Office as a Grade 7, Step 1 at $18.54 per hour, effective February 8, 2016. 
(Connolly-Gliszinski) 
●The Board approved to hire Kathleen Hagen as a part time Homemaker in Public Health as a Grade 1, 
Step 1 at $13.08 per hour, effective February 22, 2016. (Wetzel-Rohlfing) 
●The Board approved to renew the Le Sueur County Telecommute Agreement with Roxanne Braun-
Billings, full time Agency Social Worker, in Human Services, effective March 1, 2016 to March 1, 2017. 
(Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●Thee Board approved the purchase of a John Deere Tractor 6130M with a trade-in of a 2009 John Deere 
6430 from Ag Power Enterprises for $46,000 and a Mower from Diamond Mowers for $36,487 for a total 
of $82,487. (Connolly-Wetzel)
●The Board approved the purchase of a 2016 Chevrolet Equinox, State Contract 72060, from Ranger 
Chevrolet Buick GMC in the amount of $22,109. (Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●The Board approved and authorized the Chair to sign the Agreement to Provide Professional Services 
between Minnesota Counties Computer Cooperative and Trimin Systems, Inc. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)
●The Board approved a resolution to open Seasonal Bids for the Highway Department on Tuesday, 
February 16th at 10:00 a.m. (Rohlfing-Wetzel)
●The Board approved and authorized the Sheriff to sign the annual agreement between the Le Sueur 
County Jail and A’Viands, LLC. (Rohlfing-Wetzel)
●The following claims were approved for payment: (Wetzel-Connolly)
Warrant #                       Vendor Name                                                                      Amount
39357 A;Viands $    6,480.20
39370 Bolton & Menk Inc. $  11,220.00
39374 Cargill Inc. $    6,613.50
39384 Dirt Merchant Inc. $111,072.58
39386 Ehlers & Assoc. Inc. $    3,300.00
39404 Le Sueur County Soil/Water Conservation Dist. $    2,395.81
39405 M-R Sign Co. Inc. $    2,442.75
39411 Nicollet County Sheriff $    2,280.00
39417 Rinke-Noonan Law Firm $    3,589.75
39422 S.E.H. Inc. $  45,482.24
39423 Selly Excavating Inc. $  83,717.50
39424 SHI International Corp. $    6,362.00
39431 Technical Solutions of Madison Lake Inc. $    2,086.01
39437 Tri-County Solid Waste $  18,423.85

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 7 / 70

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


76 Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  31,506.10  
14 Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $305,466.19
90 Total all claims paid : $336,972.29
●The Board adjourned until Tuesday February 16, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. (Connolly-Wetzel)
ATTEST: Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 8 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 9 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 10 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 11 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 2

9:05 a.m. Claims (10 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 12 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 3

9:15 a.m. Human Services (45 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 13 / 70



Human Services Board Agenda
February 16, 2016 @ 9:15 a.m.

100- INFORMATION/PRESENTATIONS:

 101 – Introduction of New Staff – 
o Amber Lazzari (Agency Social Worker – Child Protection)

 102 – Child Protection Funding Performance Results

200- CHARTS/GRAPHS:

 210- Finance Graphs/Report;
 220- Income Maintenance/Child Support Graphs;                                 
 230- Family Services Graphs-
                    231- Social Services Team 

       232- Child Services Team
                   242.1- Out Of Home Placement Report
                   242.2- In-Home Family Therapy Report;
        233- Behavioral Health Team

300- BOARD APPROVAL ITEMS:

310 – Clubhouse Lease
320 – Adult Mental Health CSP Grant Award
330 – Commissioner’s Warrants
               

Department of Human Services
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE          LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057-1646

507-357-2251          FAX 507-357-6122

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 14 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 15 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 16 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 17 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 18 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 19 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 20 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 21 / 70



Agency

Total number of 
months in which 

visits were 
required

Total months with 
contact 

Percent of months 
with contact

Aitkin 224 162 72.3
Anoka 2310 2027 87.7
Becker 1061 1013 95.5
Beltrami 1677 1157 69
Benton 659 583 88.5
Big Stone 117 110 94
Blue Earth 936 829 88.6
Brown 288 277 96.2
Carlton 764 622 81.4
Carver 666 484 72.7
Cass 791 667 84.3
Chippewa 31 29 93.5
Chisago 581 549 94.5
Clay 1393 862 61.9
Clearwater 189 96 50.8
Cook 124 99 79.8
Crow Wing 1273 906 71.2
Dakota 1497 1280 85.5
DMHSS 349 317 90.8
Douglas 377 321 85.1
Faribault-Martin 996 893 89.7
Fillmore 113 111 98.2
Freeborn 619 504 81.4
Goodhue 538 423 78.6
Grant 43 35 81.4
Hennepin 14244 10441 73.3
Houston 172 136 79.1
Hubbard 653 601 92
Isanti 679 618 91
Itasca 1245 917 73.7
Kanabec 178 156 87.6
Kandiyohi 595 565 95
Kittson 84 78 92.9

Monthly contact with children in out-of-home placement

Child Protection Grant Allocation

PRELIMINARY Performance (1/1/15 - 12/31/15)

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 22 / 70



Agency

Total number of 
months in which 

visits were 
required

Total months with 
contact 

Percent of months 
with contact

Monthly contact with children in out-of-home placement

Child Protection Grant Allocation

PRELIMINARY Performance (1/1/15 - 12/31/15)

Koochiching 267 136 50.9
Lac Qui Parle 141 131 92.9
Lake 204 152 74.5
Lake Of The Woods 21 17 81
Le Sueur 268 246 91.8
Mahnomen 101 56 55.4
Marshall 107 102 95.3
McLeod 497 437 87.9
Meeker 191 153 80.1
Mille Lacs 469 439 93.6
MN Prairie 931 840 90.2
Morrison 517 508 98.3
Mower 554 535 96.6
Nicollet 353 336 95.2
Nobles 356 313 87.9
Norman 62 49 79
Olmsted 1231 1163 94.5
Otter Tail 478 401 83.9
Pennington 347 121 34.9
Pine 335 288 86
Polk 519 501 96.5
Pope 208 174 83.7
Ramsey 8872 6871 77.4
Red Lake 18 18 100
Renville 360 281 78.1
Rice 1053 720 68.4
Roseau 61 53 86.9
Scott 416 382 91.8
Sherburne 535 500 93.5
Sibley 129 121 93.8
Southwest HHS 1124 1073 95.5
St. Louis 6463 4336 67.1
Stearns 2244 1961 87.4

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 23 / 70



Agency

Total number of 
months in which 

visits were 
required

Total months with 
contact 

Percent of months 
with contact

Monthly contact with children in out-of-home placement

Child Protection Grant Allocation

PRELIMINARY Performance (1/1/15 - 12/31/15)

Stevens 76 70 92.1
Swift 348 326 93.7
Todd 557 505 90.7
Traverse 91 84 92.3
Wabasha 338 268 79.3
Wadena 160 139 86.9
Washington 1017 950 93.4
Watonwan 93 88 94.6
Wilkin 74 65 87.8
Winona 364 273 75
Wright 1064 995 93.5
Yellow Medicine 122 109 89.3
State total 55067 43912 79.7

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 24 / 70



Agency
Total number of 

alleged child 
victims

Number of alleged 
child victims with 

timely contact 

Percent of timely 
resposes

Aitkin 99 70 70.7
Anoka 1161 973 83.8
Becker 381 329 86.4
Beltrami 383 301 78.6
Benton 136 116 85.3
Big Stone 38 37 97.4
Blue Earth 218 203 93.1
Brown 173 157 90.8
Carlton 311 240 77.2
Carver 439 396 90.2
Cass 269 243 90.3
Chippewa 65 65 100.0
Chisago 184 155 84.2
Clay 476 364 76.5
Clearwater 122 98 80.3
Cook 20 19 95.0
Crow Wing 282 184 65.2
Dakota 1687 1446 85.7
DMHSS 182 167 91.8
Douglas 301 229 76.1
Faribault-Martin 324 283 87.3
Fillmore 81 81 100.0
Freeborn 193 158 81.9
Goodhue 134 122 91.0
Grant 84 69 82.1
Hennepin 8524 5334 62.6
Houston 28 18 64.3
Hubbard 190 176 92.6
Isanti 215 189 87.9
Itasca 296 175 59.1
Kanabec 124 112 90.3
Kandiyohi 284 247 87.0
Kittson 20 19 95.0

Timely contact with children in response to a                
maltreatment report

Child Protection Grant Allocation

PRELIMINARY Performance (1/1/15 - 12/31/15)

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 25 / 70



Agency
Total number of 

alleged child 
victims

Number of alleged 
child victims with 

timely contact 

Percent of timely 
resposes

Timely contact with children in response to a                
maltreatment report

Child Protection Grant Allocation

PRELIMINARY Performance (1/1/15 - 12/31/15)

Koochiching 62 55 88.7
Lac Qui Parle 32 23 71.9
Lake 59 53 89.8
Lake Of The Woods 12 12 100.0
Le Sueur 134 128 95.5
Mahnomen 19 12 63.2
Marshall 55 48 87.3
McLeod 262 244 93.1
Meeker 93 83 89.2
Mille Lacs 386 336 87.0
MN Prairie 433 382 88.2
Morrison 190 185 97.4
Mower 340 301 88.5
Nicollet 132 130 98.5
Nobles 79 73 92.4
Norman 21 21 100.0
Olmsted 817 735 90.0
Otter Tail 418 359 85.9
Pennington 24 13 54.2
Pine 386 280 72.5
Polk 281 267 95.0
Pope 121 80 66.1
Ramsey 2635 2421 91.9
Red Lake 31 28 90.3
Renville 148 86 58.1
Rice 371 315 84.9
Roseau 119 102 85.7
Scott 693 616 88.9
Sherburne 483 420 87.0
Sibley 105 100 95.2
Southwest HHS 581 493 84.9
St. Louis 2100 1587 75.6
Stearns 656 439 66.9

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 26 / 70



Agency
Total number of 

alleged child 
victims

Number of alleged 
child victims with 

timely contact 

Percent of timely 
resposes

Timely contact with children in response to a                
maltreatment report

Child Protection Grant Allocation

PRELIMINARY Performance (1/1/15 - 12/31/15)

Stevens 60 55 91.7
Swift 109 102 93.6
Todd 99 88 88.9
Traverse 55 49 89.1
Wabasha 114 109 95.6
Wadena 152 103 67.8
Washington 890 840 94.4
Watonwan 51 48 94.1
Wilkin 65 48 73.8
Winona 367 347 94.6
Wright 525 455 86.7
Yellow Medicine 112 105 93.8
State total 32301 25551 80.0

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 27 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 4

10:00 a.m. Seasonal Bids (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 28 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 5

10:05 a.m.  Kathy Brockway, P&Z Administrator (10 minutes)

3 RFA Items,  Traxlers Construction, Hanlon and Kamp Dels

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway - Environmental and P & Z Director

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 29 / 70



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
February 11, 2016

MEMBERS PRESENT: Don,Reak, Jeanne Doheny, Don Rynda, Shirley Katzenmeyer, Doug 
Krenik, Al Gehrke, Betty Bruzek, Pam Tietz

MEMBERS ABSENT: Steve Olson, Chuck Retka

OTHERS PRESENT: Kathy Brockway, Commissioners King and Connolly

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Chairperson, Jeanne Doheny.

ITEM #1: TRAXLER CONSTRUCTION, PAT TRAXLER, (APPLICANT) LE CENTER, 
MN; BETTY ANN MOLLENHAUER C/O RALPH & EVA FIX, (OWNER) EDINA, MN:  Request 
that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow mineral extraction of 50 acres of a 76.63 acre 
parcel in an Agriculture “A” District, in the Mineral Resources “MR” Overlay District and the Airport 
Zoning “AZ” Overlay District. Property is located in the S half of the SE1/4 and the E half of the SE1/4, 
Section 11, Ottawa Township. The application was tabled at the June 11, 2015 meeting for a Mandatory 
Environmental Review. The 30-day public comment period for the Mandatory Environmental Assessment 
Worksheet ended on January 6. 2016.  A recommendation to approve the adequacy of this document and 
recommend a negative declaration on this project. Concluding that any potential environmental effects, 
which may result from this project, have been addressed. No public comment will be taken at this meeting

Kathy Brockway presented the power point presentation. Patrick Traxler, Chantill  Kahler-Royer and 
Kirsten Pauley were present for application.  

Discussion was held regarding; Kirsten Pauley updated the Planning Commission on the process of 
reviewing the environmental documents, responding to the comments, and preparations for the conditional 
use permit process.

Motion was made by Don Reak to approve the Environmental Assessment Worksheet with the 
recommendation of a negative declaration for an Environmental Impact Statement and to continue with the 
Conditional Use Permit process. Seconded by Doug Krenik. Motion approved. Motion carried.

ITEM #2: DANIEL HANLON, ST PAUL, MN, (APPLICANT):  JMH PARTNERSHIP LLC, 
ST PAUL, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
applicant to establish and operate a self-serve storage facility in an Agriculture “A” District. Property is 
located in the NE 1/4 NE 1/4, Section 6, Derrynane Township.  

Kathy Brockway presented the power point presentation. Daniel Hanlon was present for the application.  

TOWNSHIP: No comments, notified through the application process. DNR:  N/A    LETTERS:  Theresa 
and Steve Ruhland, read into the record (see file).

PUBLIC COMMENT: No comments.

Discussion was held regarding: access, drainage, commercial use within the Agricultural District, property 
in family since 1861, number of buildings, plans of expansion in the future,  size of buildings, maintenance 
of property, weed control, lighting,  security, possibility of fencing outdoor storage, signage, material 
movement on site, stockpiling of excess material,  traffic, dust control,  personal storage of renters, storage 
of hazardous materials,  security cameras, demand of storage units, screening from highway 19, time frame 
for project, access roads gravel or asphalt. Kathy Brockway read a letter from the Ruhlands into the record 
opposing the request.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 30 / 70



1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. Agreed 6-2

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area. Agreed 5-3

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided. Agreed.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use. Agreed.

5. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.
Agreed. 5-3

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the application with the following conditions:
 Construct 3 buildings per application submitted;
 Abide by Section 19, Subdivision 9, Nuisance Control of the Le Sueur County Zoning Ordinance;
 No outside storage;
 Excess topsoil to be removed from the site, therefore no stockpiling of material onsite;

Seconded by Betty Bruzek. Motion approved 6-2. Shirley Katzenmeyer does not feel we are adhering to the 
goals and policies allowing commercial uses within the agricultural zoning district, preserve prime farm 
land. Pam Tietz quoted page 1, Goal 1 of the County Land Use Goals and Policies to preserve prime 
agricultural land within Le Sueur County. Motion carried.

ITEM #3: KAMP DELS, WATERVILLE, MN, (APPLICANT); POPE PROPERTIES, 
WATERVILLE, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
applicant an expansion to an of an existing campground to relocate 7 existing sites and create an additional 
4 sites in an Agriculture “A” District. Property is located in the NW 1/4 SE 1/4, Section 23, Waterville 
Township.  

Kathy Brockway informed the Commission that she had a conflict of interest with the application; and that 
she would present the application as submitted and answer questions pertaining to the Ordinance.

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation. Tobin Pope, co-owner of Kamp Dels was present for 
application.  

TOWNSHIP: Notification through the application process. DNR:   N/A   LETTERS:  N/A

DISCUSSION: due to a pool expansion applicant is requesting to relocate 7 sites from Tier 1 to area 
around the pond in Tier 5 and adding an additional 4 sites, new sites will meet current site regulations, full 
hook up sites, demand for additional sites, family campground, security, discussed future expansion, under 
a state permit for sewage, in the process of municipal sewage with the City of Waterville due to their new 
sewage treatment facility, no complaints on file with the County, traffic, current State Permit has been 
approved to allow the additional seasonal sites.

PUBLIC COMMENT:  Mike Clemons, adjoining property owner, losing the peace and quiet of his 
property, concerns with loud music, loud speaker not being used just for emergency situations, creating 
noise pollution, cleaning up his property to move there in the future, property in the family since 1955, 
spending more and more time there, trying to be good neighbors.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 31 / 70



1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. Agreed.

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area. Agreed.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided. Agreed.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use. Agreed.

5. Adequate measures have been taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted 
signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will 
result.
Agreed.

Motion was made by Al Gehrke to approve the application as submitted. Seconded by Don Reak. Motion 
approved. Motion carried.

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the minutes from the December 10, 2015 meeting by 
Seconded by Pam Tietz. Motion approved. Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn meeting by Al Gehrke. Seconded by Betty Bruzek. Motion approved. Motion carried.

Meeting Adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,
Shirley Katzenmeyer
By Kathy Brockway

Tape of meeting is on file in the
Le Sueur County Environmental Services Office

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 32 / 70



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
February 16, 2016

TO: LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FROM: LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SUBJECT: “REQUEST FOR ACTION”

The Planning Commission recommends your action on the following items:

ITEM #1: TRAXLER CONSTRUCTION, PAT TRAXLER, (APPLICANT) LE CENTER, 
MN; BETTY ANN MOLLENHAUER C/O RALPH & EVA FIX, (OWNER) EDINA, MN:  Request 
that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow mineral extraction of 50 acres of a 76.63 acre 
parcel in an Agriculture “A” District, in the Mineral Resources “MR” Overlay District and the Airport 
Zoning “AZ” Overlay District. Property is located in the S half of the SE1/4 and the E half of the SE1/4, 
Section 11, Ottawa Township. The application was tabled at the June 11, 2015 meeting for a Mandatory 
Environmental Review.  The 30-day public comment period for the Mandatory Environmental Assessment 
Worksheet ended on January 6, 2016.  A recommendation to approve the adequacy of this document and 
recommend a negative declaration on this project.  Concluding that any potential environmental effects, 
which may result from this project, have been addressed.  

After review of the findings of facts and conclusions the Planning Commission recommends that there are 
no potential significant environmental effects reasonably expected to occur from the Traxler Construction 
Inc. Gravel Mine Expansion and there is no need for an Environmental Impact Statement. 

ITEM #2: DANIEL HANLON, ST PAUL, MN, (APPLICANT); JMH PARTNERSHIP LLC, 
ST PAUL, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
applicant to establish and operate a self-serve storage facility in an Agriculture “A” District.  Property is 
located in the NE 1/4 NE 1/4, Section 6, Derrynane Township.  

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:  

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application  with the following 
conditions:

 Construct 3 buildings per application submitted;
 Abide by Section 19, Subdivision 9, Nuisance Control of the Le Sueur County Zoning Ordinance;
 No outside storage;
 Excess topsoil to be removed from the site, therefore no stockpiling of material onsite.

ITEM #3: KAMP DELS, WATERVILLE, MN, (APPLICANT); POPE PROPERTIES, 
WATERVILLE, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
applicant an expansion to an of an existing campground to relocate 7 existing sites and create an additional 
4 sites in an Agriculture “A” District.  Property is located in the NW 1/4 SE 1/4, Section 23, Waterville 
Township.  

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:  

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application as written.

ACTION: ITEM #1:___________________________

ITEM #2:___________________________

ITEM #3:___________________________

DATE:_______________________________________________

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S SIGNATURE:______________________________
1

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 33 / 70



FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS,    DANIEL HANLON, ST PAUL, MN, (APPLICANT); JMH PARTNERSHIP LLC, ST 
PAUL, MN, (OWNER): has applied for a Conditional Use Permit  to allow the applicant to establish and 
operate a self-serve storage facility in an Agriculture “A” District.  Property is located in the NE 1/4 NE 1/4, Section 6, 
Derrynane Township.  

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on  February 
11, 2016, in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties pertaining to 
and as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le 
Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends denial/approval of the application due to the following 
findings:

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use.

5. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

WHEREAS, On February 16, 2016, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of 
Commissioners ACTION the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by DANIEL HANLON, ST 
PAUL, MN, (APPLICANT); JMH PARTNERSHIP LLC, ST PAUL, MN, (OWNER).

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the 
February 16, 2016, Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and general 
welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

1.  With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, the conditional use will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the 
purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within 
the immediate vicinity. 

2. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, the establishment of the conditional 
use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding 
vacant property for uses predominant in the area.

3. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate measures will be taken to 
provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use.

5. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate measures will be taken to 
prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these 
will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that 
no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

2

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 34 / 70



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the 
above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to establish and operate a self-serve 
storage facility in an Agriculture “A” District.  Property is located in the NE 1/4 NE 1/4, Section 6, Derrynane 
Township.  

ATTEST:

Lance Wetzel, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____________________________

3

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 35 / 70



FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS,  KAMP DELS, WATERVILLE, MN, (APPLICANT); POPE PROPERTIES, 
WATERVILLE, MN, (OWNER): has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant an 
expansion to an of an existing campground to relocate 7 existing sites and create an additional 4 sites in an 
Agriculture “A” District. Property is located in the NW 1/4 SE 1/4, Section 23, Waterville Township.  

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on  February 
11, 2016, in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties pertaining to 
and as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le 
Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends denial/approval of the application due to the following 
findings:

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been provided.

4. Adequate measures have been taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading 
space to serve the proposed use.

5. Adequate measures have been to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and 
vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and 
other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

WHEREAS, On February 16, 2016, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of 
Commissioners ACTION the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the 
February 16, 2016, Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and general 
welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures have been taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading 
space to serve the proposed use.

5. Adequate measures have been taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted 
signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will 
result.

4

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 36 / 70



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the 
above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit To allow the applicant an expansion to an of an existing 
campground to relocate 7 existing sites and create an additional 4 sites in an Agriculture “A” District. 
Property is located in the NW 1/4 SE 1/4, Section 23, Waterville Township, is APPROVED/DENIED.  

ATTEST:

Lance Wetzel, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____________________________

5

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 37 / 70



1 | P a g e

LE SUEUR COUNTY

IN THE MATTER OF THE DECISION ON 
THE NEED FOR AN ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT STATEMENT FOR THE PROPOSED 
TRAXLER CONSTRUCTION, INC. GRAVEL 
MINE EXPANSION LE SUEUR COUNTY, 
MINNESOTA

FINDINGS OF FACT
AND CONCLUSIONS
OF LAW AND ORDER

Traxler Construction, Inc., (Proposer) proposes to expand an existing aggregate mining and processing 
facility in Le Sueur County, Minnesota. Consistent with Minnesota Rules Chapter 4410, Le Sueur County, 
the responsible governmental unit (RGU), has prepared the Traxler Construction, Inc. Environmental 
Assessment Worksheet (EAW).

FINDINGS OF FACT
Project Description

1. The project is an expansion of an existing sand and gravel mine in Le Sueur County. 
2. The expansion parcel is located across Minnesota Trunk Highway (MTH) 112 from the existing 

mine and processing plant. The total acreage of parcels with existing and proposed mining and 
processing activities is 152.92 acres. The expansion site will encompass 78 acres, of which no 
more than 49.3 acres will be mined.

3.  Mining involves the removal of overburden to expose the sand and gravel, excavation, crushing, 
screening and conveying the material under the highway for additional processing, stockpiling 
and sales at the existing mine.

4.  Reclamation will be concurrent with mining. 

Project History

1. The proposed project (Project) is the expansion of existing sand and gravel mining and 
processing facility that has been operated by the Proposer since 1989 and others before that.

2.  The existing mine is “grandfathered in” and does not operate under a Conditional Use Permit.  
3. The Project involves expanding the existing sand and gravel mine located on the east side of 

Minnesota Trunk Highway (MTH) 112 to the west side of the highway. 
4. The existing mining/processing property encompasses approximately 75 acres and mining 

operations are proposed to expand onto property encompassing 78 acres. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 38 / 70



Traxler Construction, Inc. Findings of Fact
Gravel Mine Expansion And Conclusion 
Le Sueur County, MN And Order 

2 | P a g e

Procedural History

1. On November 24, 2015, Le Sueur County released the Draft EAW for the Traxler Construction 
Inc. Gravel Mine Expansion; and

2. On December 2, 2015, public notice on the availability of the Draft EAW appeared in the Le 
Center Leader newspaper.

3. On December 7, 2015, public notice on the availability of the Draft EAW appeared in the State of 
Minnesota Environmental Quality Board’s publication: the EQB Monitor.

4. The Draft EAW was sent to the following agencies for review and comment:
a. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
b. U.S. Fish & Wildlife Services
c. Board of Water and Soil Resources
d. Minnesota Department of Agriculture
e. Minnesota Department of Health
f. Minnesota Department of Natural Resources
g. Minnesota Department of Transportation
h. Minnesota Environmental Quality Board
i. Minnesota Historical Society
j. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency
k. Minnesota Department of Commerce
l. Minnesota State Archaeologist
m. Region Nine Development Commission
n. Indian Affairs Council
o. Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning
p. Le Sueur County Soil and Water Conservation District
q. Le Sueur County Transportation Department and,

5. Copies of the document were placed in the Le Sueur County Environmental Services office, 
Technology and Science Library, the Region Nine Development Library (Blue Earth County 
Library), Le Sueur Public Library, and Le Center Library, and,  

6. The deadline for comment on the EAW was January 6, 2016.  
7. The County received comments from two governmental agencies: Minnesota Pollution Control 

Agency and Minnesota State Historic Preservation Office.
8. The County received no comments from the public.

Comments and Response to Comments

Copies of the comment letters are included as Attachment A.  Individual comments and responses are 
provided: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 39 / 70



Traxler Construction, Inc. Findings of Fact
Gravel Mine Expansion And Conclusion 
Le Sueur County, MN And Order 

3 | P a g e

Commenter: Karen Kromar, Planner Principal, Environmental Review Unit,
Resource Management and Assistance Division, MPCA

Comment Date: January 5, 2016

Thank you for your response regarding the Traxler Construction, Inc. Gravel Mine Expansion 
Environmental Assessment Worksheet. 

1. Question/Comment: Permits and Approvals (Item 8).  This facility is currently regulated under 
general industrial stormwater No Exposure permit coverage. This is typically unachievable for the 
type of activities conducted at a sand and gravel mining operation. Please clarify if all of the 
proper permits have been obtained, or applied for, for the existing and future industrial activities 
at this location. For questions regarding industrial stormwater, please contact Melissa Wenzel at 
651-757-2816.

Response: The project proposer has a General Permit for Nonmetallic Mineral Mining and 
Associated Activities  MNG490268 as well a General Permit for Industrial Stormwater Multi-
Sector Permit  MNRNE38BJ  from the MPCA. The Industrial Stormwater Multi-Sector Permit has 
a no Exposure Exclusion. The proposer will terminate the Industrial Stormwater Multi- Sector 
permit (and no exposure exclusion) and operate exclusively under the Nonmetallic Mineral 
Mining Permit. As required under the Nonmetallic Mineral Mining and Associated Activities 
permit, a site-specific stormwater pollution prevention plan will be developed and implemented for 
the existing mining operation as well as the expansion area.. The General Permit for Nonmetallic 
Mineral Mining and Associated Activities includes stormwater discharges associated with 
construction activity and small construction activity and will therefore be the only NPDES permit 
required for site operation, 

2. Question/Comment: Water Resources (Item 11).  As noted in the EAW, the Minnesota River is 
within one mile and is impaired. Please note that the impairment will dictate additional increased 
stormwater treatment during construction and require additional increased treatment post 
construction. These requirements will be included in the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System/State Disposal System (NPDES/SDS) Construction Stormwater Permit. The Project 
proposer should determine that compliance with these increased stormwater water quality 
treatments can be achieved on the Project site or elsewhere. Information regarding the MPCA’s 
Construction Stormwater Program can be found on the MPCA’s website at 
http://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/stormwater/stormwater-c.html. Questions regarding 
Construction Stormwater Permit requirements should be directed to Roberta Getman at 507-206-
2629.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 40 / 70

http://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/stormwater/stormwater-c.html


Traxler Construction, Inc. Findings of Fact
Gravel Mine Expansion And Conclusion 
Le Sueur County, MN And Order 

4 | P a g e

Response: The General Permit for Nonmetallic Mineral Mining and Associated Activities includes 
stormwater discharges associated with construction activity and small construction activity.  The 
additional best management practices that are required for construction activities located within 1 
mile of impaired waters will be incorporated into the stormwater pollution prevention plan 
prepared for the project. Applicable additional stormwater quality treatments include  stabilizing  
exposed soils area no later than 7 days after activity has ceased in that area, and providing 
temporary sedimentation basins for common drainage locations that serve an area with 5 or more 
acres disturbed at one time. 

3. Question/Comment: Noise (Item 17) As noted in the EAW, the facility will have to comply with NAC-I 
on the residential property in the area of normal residential use. The EAW does not specify the hours 
of operation. Please note that the Minnesota noise standards are more stringent during nighttime 
hours of 10:00 pm – 7:00 am and any operations during those hours will need to comply with the 
more stringent standard. For questions regarding the noise standard, please contact Amanda Smith 
at 651-757-2486.

Response: Le Sueur County ordinance states that general mining and processing activities may take 
place from 6:00 am to 7:00 pm, Monday through Saturday, unless otherwise specified in the 
Conditional Use Permit. Therefore the project may be subject to both the daytime noise standardss 
and the more restrictive nighttime standards.  The project proposer will comply with all 
applicablestate noise standards. The the Conditional Use Permit will address hours of operation as 
well as noise mitigation measures.

Commenter: Sarah J. Beimers, Manager, Government Programs, and Compliance
State Historic Preservation Office

Comment Date: December 23, 2015

Thank you for your response regarding the Traxler Construction, Inc. Gravel Mine Expansion 
Environmental Assessment Worksheet.

4. Question/Comment:  Due to the nature and location of the proposed project, we recommend that a 
Phase I archaeological survey be completed. The survey must meet the requirements of the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Identification and Evaluation, and should include an 
evaluation of National Register eligibility for any properties that are identified. 

Response: A Phase I Archaeological Survey will take place this spring, once the snow has melted. 
The Phase I Archaeological Survey will meet the requirements of the Secretary of  the Interior’s 
Standards for Identification and Evaluation including a walkover of the agricultural land at regular 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 41 / 70



Traxler Construction, Inc. Findings of Fact
Gravel Mine Expansion And Conclusion 
Le Sueur County, MN And Order 

5 | P a g e

intervals and digging several holes (usually spaced every 50 feet) anywhere that the ground surface 
visibility is less than 25%.  Since corn stubble is left from last year’s crop, the survey will take place 
after the field has been tilled. A report will be prepared which will, include additional documents and 
research  if any sites are identified. Upon completion, the Phase I report will be sent to SHPO for 
review and comment. If any site is identified that is possibly significant, then a Phase II could be 
needed

If any significant site is identified, the limits of mining may need to be amended, based on the results 
of the archaeological survey. This will be addressed by the Conditional Use Permit.

Criteria for Determining the Potential for Significant Environmental Effects

The purpose of the EAW is to identify potential environmental effects and determine whether or not an 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is required. An EIS is undertaken when the project has the 
potential for significant environmental effects. The RGU determines if a project has the potential for 
significant environmental effects based on four criteria as outlined in Minnesota Rule 4410.1700: 

1. The type, extent, and reversibility of environmental effects;
2. Cumulative potential effects;
3. Extent to which the environmental effects are subject to mitigation by ongoing public regulatory 

authority; and
4. Extent to which environmental effects can be anticipated and controlled as a result of other 

available environmental studies undertaken by public agencies or the project proposer.

Determining whether a project needs or does not need an EIS is an evaluation of the potential for 
significant environmental effects based on the above criteria.  An analysis of the four criteria is 
provided in this Record of Decision.  

1. Type, extent, and reversibility of environmental effects:

 Historic Resources
1.1   The State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) has no record of any historical properties on 

the site, but recommends that a Phase I Archaeological Survey be conducted to determine 
if there are any sites of cultural resources significance.  

1.2  The Phase 1 Archaeological Survey will be completed prior to grading or striping activities  
stripping operations and mining limits may be adjusted based on the findings of the survey 
to minimize or eliminate the potential for significant irreversible impacts. 

Erosion and Sedimentation

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 42 / 70



Traxler Construction, Inc. Findings of Fact
Gravel Mine Expansion And Conclusion 
Le Sueur County, MN And Order 

6 | P a g e

2.1  The mine operates under a Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) General Permit for 
non-metallic mineral mining, which will be amended to include the expansion area. 

2.2    Erosion and sedimentation will be controlled using MPCA Best Management Practices 
(BMP) and treating and stormwater that contacts disturbed soil or other significant material 
prior to discharge off-site in accordance with a site specific stormwater pollution prevention 
plan to be prepared for the existing mine and the expansion property. BMPs to be 
implemented may include silt fences, berms, rock construction entrances, and seeding 
disturbed areas. 

2. Cumulative potential effects of related or anticipated future projects:

The EAW addressed potential cumulative effects of this mine operating alongside several other 
mines operating in the area.  Specifically cumulative impacts to wildlife habitat  and natural plant 
communities, ground water quantity and quality, stormwater and wastewater.  Because mining is 
conducted in phases and reclamation is conducted as phases of mining are completed, 
cumulative effects are minimized. In addition, this is the continuation of an on-going mining 
operation and increases in production which may be associated with an increase in the potential 
for cumulative environmental effects  are not anticipated.  

3. The extent to which environmental effects are subject to mitigation by ongoing public regulatory 
authority:

3.1   All appropriate permits are in place (as a result of the existing operation) and will be 
modified or obtained before work starts in the expansion area.

3.2   The following environmental effects are subject to MPCA regulatory authority:
Stormwater; Water Quality; Noise; Fuel Storage and Air Emissions.

3.3  The following environmental effects are subject to DNR regulatory authority: 
Water Quantity; Surface Waters; Wetlands/public waters; and Wildlife and Habitat.

3.4   A Phase I Archaeological Survey will be conducted this spring to determine if there are any 
sites of cultural resource significance involved with the project before work starts on the 
project. If any significant sites are found, mitigation will be addressed in the Conditional Use 
Permit.

4. The extent to which environmental effects can be anticipated and controlled as a result of other 
available environmental studies undertaken by public agencies or the project proposer:

4.1 No other EISs or studies undertaken by public agencies or the proposer were reviewed. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 43 / 70



Traxler Construction, Inc. Findings of Fact
Gravel Mine Expansion And Conclusion 
Le Sueur County, MN And Order 

7 | P a g e

CONCLUSIONS

A. The EAW, comments received on the EAW, and the responses prepared, have generated 
sufficient information to determine whether the Proposed Project has the potential for significant 
environmental effects.

B. Areas where the potential for significant environmental effects from the Project may have existed 
have either been identified and incorporated into the EAW or will be mitigated through State and 
local mandatory permitting and regulatory procedures.

C. The Project will be required to meet all regulatory standards through permitting, monitoring, and 
mitigative measures.

D. Based upon the criteria established in Minnesota Rule 4410.1700, subpart 7, the Project does not 
have the potential for significant environmental effects. An Environmental Impact Statement is not 
required.

E. Any findings that might properly be termed conclusions and any conclusions that might properly 
be termed findings are hereby adopted as such.

ORDER

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF LE SEUER COUNTY, STATE OF 
MINNESOTA, as follows:

That the Le Sueur County Board, after review of the findings of facts and conclusions determines that 
there are no potential significant environmental effects reasonably expected to occur from the Traxler 
Construction Inc. Gravel Mine Expansion and there is no need for an Environmental Impact Statement, 

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by Board member _________ 
and upon vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:

and the following voted against the same:

and the following abstained:

and the following were absent:

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 44 / 70



Traxler Construction, Inc. Findings of Fact
Gravel Mine Expansion And Conclusion 
Le Sueur County, MN And Order 

8 | P a g e

whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted by the Le Sueur County Board this the 
16th day of February 2016.

Chairperson, Board of County Commissioners
ATTEST:

County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 45 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 6

10:15 a.m. Le Sueur County Historical Society (5 min)

RE: Ottawa Church Restoration Project Update

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 46 / 70



	  

	  	  

Restoration Project Update 
Ottawa Stone Church 

A National Register Property of 
Le Sueur County Historical Society  

Ottawa Area Historical Project Fund 
Le Sueur County Commissioners Meeting 

February 16, 2016 

Per the agreement between Unimin Minnesota Corporation and Le Sueur County Historical Society, 
the Society provides a project update and advises Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners of the 
next approved phase of a restoration project funded through the Ottawa Area Historical Project Fund. 
 
Project Update 
Planning Phase Completed 
At the County Board meeting held October 27, 2015, dispersal of $11,800 in funds was approved in 
support of the planning phase for an Ottawa Stone Church restoration project. Direct payments to 
approved vendors, LS Engineers ($10,000) and Goodrich Construction ($1,800), were issued from the 
Ottawa Area Historical Project Fund in December 2015 and January 2016. As a result of the planning 
phase, structural analysis, architectural drawings, construction description, and budget assessment 
have been completed.    
 
Next phase – Building Stabilization 
During January, Le Sueur County Historical Society Board of Directors reviewed several scenarios for 
addressing the steeple and roof needs and grant opportunities for the National Registered building. To 
protect the building and acquire information necessary for grant applications, the Board decided 
upon a stabilization approach involving the following steps: removal of the entire 3-piece steeple 
structure, storing it on the church grounds for the bell tower to be rebuilt in the original open style, 
creating roof openings to allow the architect, engineer and construction manager to get inside and 
further examine structural needs, acquire dimensions, and create design drawings. These steps will 
result in a detailed plan and complete project estimate for submission with 2016 grant applications.  
 
Approval and Support 
On January 21, 2016, the LCHS Board accepted a stabilization phase proposal and estimate of 
$34,900 from Goodrich Construction. 
On January 26, 2016, Unimin Corporation confirmed support of the stabilization phase and use of 
funds in the Ottawa Area Historical Project Fund. 
 
Timeline 
Construction work on the site will begin in February. 
 
Funds Disbursement 
Per terms of the Ottawa Area Historical Project Fund Agreement, Le Sueur County Historical Society 
Board of Directors approves disbursement of the following funds directly to Goodrich Construction: 
   Upon acceptance of contract:     February 19, 2016 $   3,500.00 
   Upon commencement of work:     February 26, 2016 $ 15,000.00 
   Upon submission of final invoice     April 2016   $ 16,400.00  
 
Status of Ottawa Area Historical Project Fund 
Current balance is $50,239,00.  
 
  
 
     Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 47 / 70



Page 1 

 

 

 
     

 

 

 

Your Full Service Design/Build Contractor 

1700 Third Avenue   

 Mankato, MN 56001 

(507) 388-1004 

Fax: (507) 388-0739 

Contractor License: #2156 

 

Proposal: 100416 Date: 1/21/16 

    Submitted To:                                           Work Site: 

Name: LSCHS Job Name: Ottawa church stabilization 

Address: 39024 Wittier Street Address: 39024 Wittier Street 

City/State: Ottawa, MN City/State: Ottawa, MN 

Zip: 56058 Zip: 56058 

Telephone:  Date Of Plans:  

Contact(s):    

 

Proposal 

We propose to furnish all materials and perform all the labor necessary for the completion of work based on the 

following specifications: 

 

Erect and remove scaffolding as required to perform work. 

Remove the existing 3 section steeple to the ground, set the sections on support cribbing and brace. 

Remove the bell and hardware and store inside the church building. 

Open sections of roof at the eaves as required to confirm conditions and dimensions for reconstruction. 

Install temporary covers on the opened roof areas designed to last up to one year. 

 

Note:  The goal of this work is to remove the threat to the building posed by the failing structure supporting 

the steeple.  Every effort will be made to preserve the elements that are removed, but no provision is made to 

restore or re-install any of those elements.  The steeple sections will be left on site and braced to each other. 

 

Base Bid:  $34,900.00 

 

 

 

Note: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 30 days. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

 

Randy Dinsmore 

Project Coordinator 

Goodrich Construction, Inc. 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 48 / 70



Page 2 

 

Ottawa Church stabilization                                        Proposal #100416                                                           1/21/16 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL-FORMATION OF CONTRACT 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified, and the above work to be performed in accordance with the 

specification submitted and to be completed for the sum of:  

 

                                       

Thirty Four Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars ($34,900.00) 

                     

        

Payments to be made as follows:  $3,500.00 due upon acceptance of this proposal, $15,000.00 due upon 

commencement of work, balance due upon the substantial completion of work.  

 

Any alteration, change or deviation from the above specifications involving extra costs, will be done only upon 

written orders, and will be an extra charge over and above the contract price.  All agreements are contingent upon 

strikes, accidents, weather or other delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire, tornado and other necessary 

insurance upon above work.  Workers Compensation and Public Liability Insurance on above work to be taken out 

by Goodrich Construction, Inc.  Contractor may cease work if payments are not made or funds do not clear the 

bank.  The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are authorized 

to do the work as specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above. 

 

Acceptance Date:     Authorized Signature: 

                                                                                                     

                                            

 

ANY PERSON OR COMPANY SUPPLYING LABOR OR MATERIALS FOR THIS IMPROVEMENT TO 

YOUR PROPERTY MAY FILE A LIEN AGAINST YOUR PROPERTY IF THAT PERSON OR COMPANY IS 

NOT PAID FOR THE CONTRIBUTIONS. 

 

UNDER MINNESOTA LAW, YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO PAY PERSONS WHO SUPPLIED LABOR OR 

MATERIALS FOR THIS IMPROVEMENT DIRECTLY AND DEDUCT THIS AMOUNT FROM OUR 

CONTRACT PRICE, OR WITHHOLD THE AMOUNTS DUE THEM FROM US UNTIL 120 DAYS AFTER 

COMPLETION OF THE IMPROVEMENT UNLESS WE GIVE YOU A LIEN WAIVER SIGNED BY 

PERSONS WHO SUPPLIED ANY LABOR OR MATERIAL FOR THE IMPROVEMENT AND WHO GAVE 

YOU TIMELY NOTICE. 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 49 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 7

10:20 a.m. Scott Gerr, MIS (5 min)

RE: AirWatch Support Renewal Quote

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 50 / 70



 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  11010797
Created On:  Feb-05-2016
Valid Until:   Mar-01-2016

 
County of Le Sueur MN

 
Inside Account
Executive

 
Scott Gerr
Phone: (507) 357-8286
Fax:  
Email: sgerr@co.le-sueur.mn.us

 

Bill Scioscia
33 Knightsbridge Road
Piscataway, NJ, 08854
Phone: 732-564-8554
Fax: 732-564-8224
Email: Bill_Scioscia@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 Basic Support/Subscription for VMware AirWatch Green Management Suite: 1

Device for 1 year Restricted to Partners with Airwatch Cloud and On Prem Training.
Technical Support, 12 Hours/Day, per published Business Hours, Mon. thru Fri. 
   AirWatch - Part#: V-GMS-SSS-D-G-C

75 $10.50 $787.50

 
Subtotal $787.50

Total $787.50

Additional Comments

If you are using SHI’s contract# #48196 release C1046(5), please include this contract number on your PO

The Products offered under this proposal are subject to the SHI Return Policy posted at www.shi.com/returnpolicy, unless there is
an existing agreement between SHI and the Customer.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 51 / 70

http://www.shi.com/returnpolicy


Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 8

10:25 a.m. Mike Schultz, Soil & Water (10 min)

RE: Charles Puffer Stabilization Project

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 52 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 53 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 54 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 55 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 56 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 57 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 9

10:35 a.m. Human Resources (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 58 / 70



Equal Opportunity Employer

HUMAN RESOURCES
AGENDA ITEMS

February 16, 2016

Recommendation to advertise for a part time Drug Court Compliance Specialist, in 
Drug Court, as a Grade 4, Step 1 at $15.58 per hour.  

Recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Investigative Sergeant, in 
the Sheriff’s Office, as a Grade 12, Step 1 at $24.82 per hour.

 

88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607

Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director

Human Resources

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 59 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 10

10:40 a.m. Dave Tietz, Sheriff (5 min)

RE: Patrol Vehicle Quotes

RE: AIS Trailer Purchase

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 60 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 61 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 11

10:45 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator/Engineer

RE: Drug Court Contract

RE: Ney Nature Center Sign

RE: Western County Boundary/Meandering River

RE: County Ditch Fund Balances

RE: March Ditch Workshop

RE: February 23 Space Study and CIP Workshop Reminder

RE: February 29 Transit Meeting Reminder

RE: MIsc.

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 62 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 63 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 64 / 70



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 65 / 70



Resolution by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners

Resolution to Approve the Designation of Ney Nature Center Sign 

Whereas, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners requests MnDOT to place a sign on TH169 to 
direct the general public to the Le Sueur County Ney Nature Center Park located on State Highway 19.

I certify that the above resolution was adopted by the County Board of Le Sueur County on Tuesday, 
February 16, 2016.

Signed: Witnessed:

_____________________________ ____________________________

Board Chair, John King County Administrator, Darrell Pettis

_____________________________ ______________________________

Date Date

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 66 / 70



Ditch No. Balance 2-3-2016 2016 taxes Balance of Lien(s) Balance(for 2016 Lien Purposes) Possible 2016 Lien
2 2,097.88 2,097.88 Suggested Liens
4 636.41 840.66 0.00 1,477.07
6 -6,797.59 2,277.66 0.00 -4,519.93
9 9,186.09 9,186.09

15 4,098.95 910.27 0.00 5,009.22
CD#16 Retermination -7,270.43 -7,270.43

16 -1,224.82 -1,224.82
17 -643.36 -643.36
18 -2,647.13 -2,647.13

CD #18 Impoundment 0.00
19 -31,697.54 -31,697.54
21 4,172.64 4,172.64
22 -8,487.53 -8,487.53
23 -55,326.88 4,054.57 7,239.64 -44,032.67 2018 last year of lien
26 -180.31 25.83 23.94 -130.54 2017 last year of lien
28 637.62 637.62
29 -43,891.96 -43,891.96
31 -5,394.17 -5,394.17
32 1,295.59 851.70 0.00 2,147.29
34 -6,904.10 -6,904.10
35 3,740.95 3,740.95
36 1,904.85 1,006.92 932.32 3,844.09 2017 last year of lien
37 3,864.11 3,864.11
38 12,823.52 3,981.21 7,056.61 23,861.34 2018 last year of lien
40 -9,435.24 3,145.43 2,912.48 -3,377.33 2017 last year of lien
41 -11,914.71 2,030.51 3,625.99 -6,258.21 2018 last year of lien
42 -4,722.35 -4,722.35
43 -1,109.86 3,611.11 6,448.37 8,949.62 2018 last year of lien
44 13,663.99 1,848.85 1,711.67 17,224.51 2017 last year of lien
45 -37,923.25 -37,923.25

45, Sp 7 8,988.42 8,988.42
45, Lat 1, Sp 7 1,987.77 1,987.77

46 -15,548.10 -15,548.10
47 317.56 1,224.83 4,938.74 6,481.13 2021 last year of lien
48 1,577.80 1,081.41 1,931.05 4,590.26 2018 last year of lien
49 11,381.80 11,381.80
50 2,265.21 2,265.21

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 67 / 70



51 -19,563.93 -19,563.93
51, Lat 1, Sp 1 -378.59 -378.59
51, Lat 1, Sp 2 97.66 97.66

52 -13,661.31 -13,661.31
53 -22,826.55 -22,826.55
54 48,483.57 5,049.34 23,306.69 76,839.60 2022 last year of lien
56 3,486.88 3,486.88
57 -474.04 -474.04
58 -144,841.14 -144,841.14
59 -3,574.71 -3,574.71
60 6,461.03 6,461.03
61 5,124.28 1,059.22 0.00 6,183.50
62 16,534.47 6,530.78 30,612.89 53,678.14 2022 last year of lien
63 19,386.06 1,245.07 5,836.14 26,467.27 2022 last year of lien
64 -47,111.73 -47,111.73
65 796.25 72.96 130.30 999.51 2018 last year of lien
67 -222.03 -222.03
68 -24,907.84 1,130.31 3,767.62 -20,009.91 2020 last year of lien
69 6,906.34 6,906.34
70 1,494.26 1,494.26
72 0.00

TOTAL -335,269.24 41,978.64 100,474.45 -192,816.15

LS-BE Jt 1 -29,455.51 -29,455.51
LS-BE Jt 2 -10,641.96 -10,641.96
LS-BE Jt 15 -20,609.76 -20,609.76
LS-Rice Jt 5 -49,855.64 -49,855.64
LS-Scott Jt 1 -50,375.28 -50,375.28
LS-Scott Jt 1, Lat 2 18,443.67 18,443.67
LS-Scott Jt 4 -69,376.70 -69,376.70
TOTAL -211,871.18 -211,871.18

GRAND TOTAL -547,140.42 41,978.64 100,474.45 -404,687.33

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 68 / 70



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, February 16, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 12

Future Meetings

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 69 / 70



February 15, 2016 Offices Closed – President’s Day

February 16, 2016 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*CHB Meeting, 1:00 p.m. Waterville Senior Center

February 18, 2016 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

February 23, 2016 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*Workshop: Space Needs and CIP

February 29, 2016 Nicollet, Blue Earth, Le Sueur County Transit Meeting
10:00 a.m. at the Nicollet County Government Center

March 1, 2016 Board Meeting 9:00 a.m.

March 8, 2016 No Board Meeting

March 10, 2016 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Environmental Services Building

March 15, 2016 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

March 17, 2016 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

March 22, 2016 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

March 29, 2016 No Board Meeting

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 2/16/2016 Page 70 / 70


